STRATEGAS Strategas Asset Management, LLC

Brochure March 25, 2021

> Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, 8th Floor New York, NY 10017 Phone: (212) 906-0130 Fax: (212) 906-0131 Website: <u>http://strategasasset.com/</u>

This brochure (the "Brochure") provides information about the qualifications and business practices of Strategas Asset Management, LLC (herein, the "Firm" or "SAM"). If you have any questions about the contents of this Brochure, please contact us at 212-906-0130 or info@strategasrp.com. The information in this Brochure has not been approved by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or by any state securities authority. Registration with the SEC or any state securities authority does not imply a certain level of skill or training.

Additional information about Strategas Asset Management, LLC also is available on the SEC's website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov.



Item 2. Material Changes

SAM updated their Form ADV Part 2A brochure (the "Brochure") on March 25, 2021. The following summary discusses the material changes that SAM has made to the Brochure since March 10, 2020, the date of the last annual update to the Brochure.

- Item 4. Background and Principal Ownership was updated to remove Baird Holding Company which dissolved December 2020. Advisory Business was updated to reflect assets as of December 31, 2020. Model Delivery Services was updated to add the RiverFront Strategas Blue Chip Opportunities strategy.
- Item 8. Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss, Overview of Investment Strategies was updated to reflect the New Sovereigns strategy name change to the Blue Chip Opportunities strategy.
- Item 10. Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations was updated to add the affiliated STS product Strategas Trust, a unit investment trust organized in series.
- Item 17. Voting Client Securities was updated to clarify that SAM utilizes an electronic proxy voting management system.

A client should note the foregoing summary only discusses material changes made to the Brochure since March 10, 2020. The updated Brochure contains other non-material changes not listed above.



Table of Contents

Item 4. Advisory Business1
Background and Principal Ownership1
Services Provided1
Assets Managed3
Item 5. Fees and Compensation
Model Delivery Services
Portfolio Management Services4
Item 6. Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side
Management
Item 7. Types of Clients
Item 8. Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of
Loss
Investment Philosophy and Methods of Analysis
Overview of Investment Strategies
Risk of Loss
Item 9. Disciplinary Information
Item 10. Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations
Material Relationships
Item 11. Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client
Transactions and Personal Trading
Brokerage Practices
Selection of Broker-Dealers
Aggregated Trades
Item 13. Review of Accounts
Account Reviews
Account Reporting
Account Reporting
Item 14. Client Referrals and Other Compensation
Item 14. Client Referrals and Other Compensation
Item 14. Client Referrals and Other Compensation

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, 8th Floor, New York, NY 10017 212-906-0130



Item 4. Advisory Business

Background and Principal Ownership.

SAM is an investment advisory firm that was initially registered as an investment adviser with the State of New York and since May 2018 is registered with the SEC. Formed in 2014 as a New York limited liability company, SAM is whollyowned subsidiary of Baird Financial Corporation, following its acquisition of SAM in January 2018. Baird Financial Corporation in turn is 100% owned by Baird Financial Group, Inc. Baird Financial Group, Inc. is a privately held holding company owned by the employees of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated ("Baird"), a FINRA member brokerdealer and SEC-registered investment adviser. Through common ownership, SAM is affiliated with Baird and Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a FINRA member broker-dealer and SEC-registered investment adviser.

SAM's principal place of business is at 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor, New York, NY 10017, with an additional office at 1775 Eye Street, Suite 420, Washington, D.C. 20006.

Services Provided

SAM offers a suite of model portfolios to clients, which are either delivered to clients for their own use (or for use by or with their underlying clients) or are used by SAM in managing client accounts. The model portfolios are generated by SAM's affiliate, STS, through its macro research group. SAM, pursuant to an agreement with STS, is authorized to offer and distribute the model portfolios to its clients and to manage client accounts using the model portfolios. The model portfolios are described in greater detail in Item 8.

When delivering or managing client accounts in accordance with the model portfolios, SAM does not revise or amend the model portfolios generated by STS. SAM provides the model portfolios as-is to clients. However, if requested by a client, SAM considers providing stock picks to supplement the model portfolio that the client or the client's client may use to meet its needs or preferences. Factors that may be considered in determining whether to provide supplemental stock picks include, but are not limited to, whether the request is inconsistent with the nature, operation, or investment strategy of the model portfolio, and the number and frequency of such requests from the client. In addition, a client may request that reasonable investment limitations or restrictions apply to the

client's account managed by SAM. SAM does not otherwise tailor its advisory services to the individual needs of clients because clients who engage SAM to manage their accounts select a model portfolio offered by SAM as their investment strategy Differences in the positions held in client accounts using the same strategy will generally be due to differences in the contributions and withdrawals made by clients to and from those accounts.

SAM offers the following two services: (1) model portfolio delivery, *i.e.*, licensing clients to receive the model portfolio(s), including updates thereto ("Model Delivery Services"), and (2) portfolio management services, *i.e.*, managing clients' assets with discretion consistent with a client selected model portfolio provided by SAM ("Portfolio Management Services"). SAM's advice is limited to these services. In providing Portfolio Management Services, SAM may be engaged directly by the client as investment adviser or may serve as sub-adviser.

Model Delivery Services

SAM offers licenses to clients to receive and use the model portfolios, including regular updates thereto. The updates include the changes in the model portfolio composition and recommended rebalancing. Under this service, SAM does not manage any client assets, vote proxies or exercise any form of investment discretion over client accounts. The clients of SAM that receive the model portfolio(s), which typically are institutions such as broker-dealers and investment advisers, are responsible for assessing initially and on an ongoing basis the viability and suitability of any investment portfolio decision they or their designee makes for themselves, their underlying clients or third parties, including decisions made based on the model portfolio. SAM has a Model Delivery Agreement with RiverFront Investment Group, Inc. ("RiverFront"), an SEC registered investment adviser. SAM provides a model that is used by RiverFront to make investment selections for the RiverFront Strategas Policy Opportunities Portfolio ("RSPO") and the RiverFront Strategas Blue Chip Opportunities Strategy ("RSBCO"). SAM, Riverfront and Baird are affiliated with each other. RiverFront is approximately 49% owned by Baird Financial Corporation, and SAM and Baird are 100% owned by Baird Financial Corporation. SAM and RiverFront are operationally independent.



Portfolio Management Services

SAM also offers Portfolio Management Services as an adviser or sub-adviser to client accounts. These accounts may include individuals, trusts, family offices, companies, non-profits, corporations, other investment advisers, investment companies, and other institutional accounts. The client selects the model portfolio(s) to be used from those offered by SAM based on the client's objectives, and then agrees to have his/her/its accounts managed in accordance with the selected model portfolios and (if applicable) SAM's supplemental stock picks and client-imposed investment restrictions. In providing Portfolio Management Services to client accounts, SAM manages the accounts with discretion. SAM's advice is limited to these services. SAM may offer nondiscretionary investment advice to certain clients but does not currently do so.

Separately Managed Accounts

When acting as an adviser or sub-adviser to separately managed accounts, SAM has relationships with various entities that perform, or facilitate through third-parties, advisory, brokerdealer or custodial services for SAM clients. Those entities currently include Baird, Charles Schwab & Co., Inc., Envestnet Asset Management, Inc., Fidelity Brokerage Services LLC/National Financial Services LLC and Lockwood Advisors, Inc. (each a "Platform"). Each Platform offers different services and charges different fees. Some Platforms may charge a fee that includes the fee payable to SAM for Portfolio Management Services, while other Platforms may charge a fee that does not include and is in addition to SAM's fee. In addition, some Platforms may charge commissions for the trades executed at SAM's direction for the client's account, and other Platforms may not charge commissions. SAM may also provide Portfolio Management Services directly to clients who select their own custodians and do not use a Platform.

Neither SAM nor STS maintains custody of client assets/accounts or executes securities transactions for client accounts managed by SAM. However, SAM's affiliate, Baird, offers a Platform in which it maintains custody of client accounts that are managed by SAM. When clients engage SAM to provide Portfolio Management Services on Baird's Platform, those clients pay a fee to SAM for its Portfolio Management Services and a separate fee to Baird. Unless otherwise agreed, clients authorize Baird to deduct SAM's fee and Baird's fee directly from the client's custodial account in advance, with Baird remitting SAM's fee to SAM. The fee to Baird covers the custody, account maintenance, advisory and trading services provided by Baird. Thus, when SAM places orders for securities transactions with Baird for execution, Baird will not charge commissions on those transactions. The fee payable to Baird is a quarterly fee, payable in advance, generally at an annual rate of 15 basis points, i.e., 0.15%, of the value of client assets in the account managed by SAM. Baird's fee is negotiable. Baird's Platform presents a conflict of interest for both SAM and Baird. SAM has an incentive to recommend Baird's Platform because Baird does not charge SAM for use of the Platform and SAM, by virtue of its affiliation with Baird, indirectly benefits from the revenues that Baird receives for the services Baird provides to clients. Baird also benefits from SAM clients who use the Platform because of the fee revenue Baird receives for its custody and trading services.

For SAM to provide model portfolios through a Platform, the client is required to enter into an appropriate written agreement(s) acceptable to SAM and the Platform. Under the respective contracts, each Platform performs or facilitates administrative and technological services, the placement of trade orders pursuant to the model portfolios, and the preparation and delivery of account statements and other reports. For these services, each Platform charges fees for securities execution, custodial and other services to the client that are separate from the fees that SAM charges. The Platforms generally pay SAM its fee out of the fee that the Platform collects from the client. Before entering into any relationship with a Platform, clients should carefully review the information provided by the Platform, which may be the Form ADV (including the brochures), including the information that describes the services provided by the Platform and fees charged by the Platform. Clients may contact SAM's CCO for assistance in identifying the current information for each Platform.

SAM does not sponsor a wrap fee program, *i.e.*, a single fee charged to the client for bundle services such as investment advice and brokerage services. Some services for separately managed accounts, as described above, are offered as part of a wrap fee program offered by the Platform. SAM manages wrap fee accounts similar to other non-wrap fee



separately managed accounts pursuant to the model portfolio selected. For accounts that are in a wrap fee program, SAM receives a portion of the wrap fee for SAM's services.

SEC-Registered Investment Companies

SAM makes its sub-advisory portfolio management services available to SEC registered investment companies (such as mutual funds) that seek an investment strategy consistent with the model portfolios offered by SAM. SAM currently serves as sub-adviser to the Brinker Capital Destinations Large Cap Equity Fund. SAM may need to modify its model portfolios in connection with its subadvisory services to a mutual fund or other SECregistered investment company in order to comply with applicable investment restrictions under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or as set forth in the fund prospectus or statement of additional information. Information concerning a mutual fund, including a description of the services to be provided by and the advisory fees payable to SAM, is contained in the fund's prospectus or other offering documents. Investment advice is provided on a discretionary basis in SAM's capacity as subadviser, meaning that the fund authorizes SAM to make all investment decisions, subject to applicable restrictions and the supervision of the fund's primary adviser and the fund's board of trustees.

When acting as a sub-adviser to a SEC-registered investment company, SAM may consult with the fund or its investment adviser in selecting brokerdealers to execute trades and commission rates and in determining other third-party services that are needed in connection with SAM's management of the fund's assets.

Assets Managed

As of December 31, 2020, SAM had discretionary authority to manage accounts with assets totaling approximately \$480 million. As of the same date, SAM had no client assets that it managed on a nondiscretionary basis. SAM also delivers model portfolios to clients such as investment advisers and, although not regarded as client assets, believes that those model portfolios are used or evaluated for accounts with an aggregate value of about \$142 million on December 31, 2020.

Item 5. Fees and Compensation

SAM's fee depends on the type of service the client receives. In addition to SAM's fees discussed below, clients are or may be responsible for brokerage commissions, markups, markdowns, other investment advisory fees, custodial fees, platform fees, and other sales charges and transaction fees resulting from transactions in their accounts. All fees paid to SAM for services are separate and distinct from these fees. Please refer to Item 10 for information regarding SAM's material relationships and potential conflicts of interest. Please refer to Item 12 below for information regarding brokerage practices.

Model Delivery Services

Unless otherwise agreed, SAM charges its fees quarterly in arrears for Model Delivery Services clients. Typically, SAM's fee is at an annual rate ranging from 10 to 35 basis points, *i.e.*, 0.20% to 0.35% for equity and balanced portfolios and 0.10% to 0.25% for fixed income portfolios, on the assets invested in the selected model portfolio. SAM's fee is negotiable. SAM's fee is separate and distinct from any fees the SAM clients (or their underlying clients) may incur in using the model portfolios to invest, including the fees of investment advisers, broker-dealers or custodians. SAM provides a model portfolio (Policy Opportunities Portfolio and Blue Chip Opportunities Portfolio) to RiverFront Investment Group (an affiliate of SAM and Baird) which in turn manages client accounts using that model portfolio or redelivers that model portfolio to other clients. SAM receives a fee equal to 50% of the fee that RiverFront receives as a result of its use of SAM's model portfolios.

Under these arrangements, the Model Delivery Services client agrees to pay SAM a fee based on the market value of the total assets invested on the last trading day of each quarter in accordance with the selected model portfolio(s) across all accounts utilizing such model portfolio(s) during the immediately preceding calendar quarter, including if some or all of any such accounts are then held in cash. The client further agrees to provide SAM a report with the total account balances and a proposed calculation of the fee owed to SAM. SAM reviews the report and invoices the client for the fees owed to SAM.

Upon the request of the client, SAM may accept quarterly payment in advance of services based on



the market value of the total assets invested as of the last trading day of the prior quarter. If a client terminates the agreement or otherwise removes assets from the model portfolio prior to quarterend, SAM refunds automatically a *pro rata* share of the fee on a per diem basis.

Portfolio Management Services

Separately Managed Accounts

For SAM to provide Portfolio Management Services to clients through a Platform, the client is required to enter into an appropriate written agreement(s) acceptable to SAM and the Platform. The terms of the underlying contracts describe the fee arrangements.

SAM typically charges a fee for Portfolio Management Services on a quarterly basis at an annual rate of 0.50% of the value of the client assets in the account managed by SAM. However, SAM's fee is negotiable, and SAM has clients who pay less than that rate, including clients who retained SAM for Portfolio Management Services prior to November 1, 2018 and clients who retain SAM to provide Portfolio Management Services on a sub-advisory basis through Platforms. SAM's fee is generally separate and in addition to fees and charges imposed by a Platform or the client's custodian for the account. Generally, SAM's fee is deducted and paid directly out of the client's account.

When SAM's quarterly fee is paid in advance, the fee is calculated on the value of the client's account as of the last day of the prior guarter. When SAM's quarterly fee is paid in arrears it is calculated on the value of the client's account as of the last day of the guarter that most recently ended. When a client first establishes an account during a calendar quarter and SAM's fee is payable in advance, the fee will be calculated based on the value of the account at the time SAM begins to provide Portfolio Management Services and the number of days remaining until the end of the quarter. When a client first establishes an account during a calendar quarter and SAM's fee is payable in arrears, SAM's fee for the first quarterly period will be calculated based on the value of the account at the end of the quarter and the number of days during the quarter in which SAM managed the account. For clients paying SAM's quarterly fee in advance who terminate SAM's management of the account during a calendar quarter, a portion of SAM's fee will be refunded to the client representing the

number of days remaining in the quarter following such termination during which SAM managed the account.

Registered Investment Companies

If SAM serves as sub-adviser to a registered investment company such as a mutual fund, its fee will either be paid by the investment adviser out of its management fee or be paid directly by the fund out of its custodial account. Typically, SAM's fee is accrued daily and paid monthly at an annual rate of 0.35%, of the value of the fund assets managed by SAM; however, SAM's fee is negotiable. SAM's fee is separate and distinct from any fees the SAM client may incur as a result of investing in the registered investment company, including sales loads (if any) and fund operating expenses (such as management fees, distribution or 12b-1 fees, custodial fees, transfer agency fees, administrative service fees, etc.).

Item 6. Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side Management

SAM does not charge any performance-based fees that are based on a share of capital gains or capital appreciation of the assets of a client.

Item 7. Types of Clients

SAM offers the Model Delivery Service to clients that invest directly, or on behalf of their clients. Generally, SAM's clients include (without limitation) institutions such as broker-dealers and investment advisers. SAM does not require a minimum asset amount for this service.

SAM offers the Portfolio Management Services to clients that utilize one or more of the model portfolios for assets maintained in an account. Generally, SAM's clients include (without limitation) individuals, high net worth individuals, pooled investment vehicles, and other investment advisers. These clients must select a Platform. Clients should review their agreements with SAM and the Platform to determine the requirements for opening and maintaining an account. The agreements applicable to Envestnet Asset Management, Inc. have an account minimum of \$50,000 of assets maintained in the client's account. When working with the other Platforms, SAM may impose an account minimum of \$100,000 of assets maintained in the client's account. Special considerations may justify acceptance of smaller accounts or rejection of larger accounts. For clients



who contract directly with SAM rather than through a Platform, the account minimum is \$200,000, which can be waived at SAM's discretion.

SAM also offers the Portfolio Management Services to registered investment companies, in which it serves as sub-adviser. Information concerning a mutual fund, including a description of the services to be provided by and the advisory fees payable to SAM, are contained in the fund's prospectus or other offering documents.

Item 8. Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss

Investment Philosophy and Methods of Analysis

The model portfolios are generated by SAM's affiliate, Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a FINRA member broker-dealer and SEC-registered investment adviser. SAM, pursuant to an agreement with STS, is authorized to offer and distribute the model portfolios to its clients. With limited exceptions, SAM does not revise or amend the model portfolios provided by STS, and does not tailor the model portfolios to meet any specific client's needs or preferences.

Each model portfolio is derived from a top-down investment approach with a focus on a broad, macroeconomic theme (for example, strategy, economics, policy, fixed income, quantitative, and technical), which is then utilized to identify specific companies that are within the scope of the theme for investment. Model portfolios typically limit investments to U.S. equities and Exchange Traded Funds ("ETFs"). Fundamental and technical research, as well as quantitative models and industry-wide trends and activities, are researched and analyzed in developing and updating a model portfolio, and the securities contained within the model portfolio.

Overview of Investment Strategies

SAM offers model portfolios containing publicly traded equity securities and ETFs. The portfolios are updated monthly, quarterly, bi-annually or annually and *ad hoc* when significant corporate events of a portfolio company (*e.g.*, merger, acquisition, bankruptcy) occur.

The **Policy Opportunities Strategy** identifies companies that lobby to influence public policy that

affects or may affect them or their industries. Most analyst models do not account for corporate "lobbying spend". Thus, the earnings benefit derived from corporate lobbying may be mispriced. This investment process begins with 500 stocks and results in the selection of 50 equally-weighted stocks. The model portfolio is updated four times per year. Specific risks associated with this strategy include (without limitation) political risks, including changes that may impair the ability of companies to affect government policy.

The Blue Chip Opportunities Strategy offers an equity alternative to sovereign credit. Because the yield of sovereign credit is at multi-generational lows, this model uses market-measured credit default risk to produce an equity alternative that attempts to mimic the quality, yield and safety of a sovereign credit portfolio. This investment process begins with a broad universe of large cap stocks and results in the selection of 50 equallyweighted stocks. The model portfolio is updated four times per year. Specific risks associated with this strategy include (without limitation) a decline in the investor appetite for yield oriented investments and an increase in investor appetite for small-cap companies. The Strategas Blue Chip Opportunities portfolio was previously known as the Strategas New Sovereigns portfolio.

The Large-Cap Dividend Growth Strategy identifies large-cap companies that provide both dividend yield and dividend growth. The strategy identifies companies with the strongest riskadjusted returns based on research that those companies are more likely to generate dividend yield and dividend growth. This investment process begins with 500 stocks and results in the selection of 20-35 equally-weighted large-cap stocks. The model portfolio is updated four times per year. Specific risks associated with this strategy include (without limitation) any changes in dividend policies for companies in the portfolio, a decline in the investor appetite for yield oriented investments, and an increase in investor appetite for small-cap companies.

The **Large-Cap Earnings Momentum Alpha Strategy** invests in large-cap companies that exhibit strong upward earnings revisions and attractive relative valuations. To identify such companies, the percentage of net-upward revisions, which is calculated by taking the number of analysts who have revised earnings estimates up for a specific company and dividing it by the



total number of estimates for that specific company over a rolling 90-day time period, is determined. The relative price-to-earnings ratio for a company as applied to that company's sector is also determined. This investment process begins with 500 stocks and results in the selection of 45-50 equally-weighted stocks. The model portfolio is updated monthly. Specific risks associated with this strategy include (without limitation) overexposure in one's portfolio to securities with recent above-average returns, a change in the breadth of reported earnings estimates, and models and data that are incorrect or incomplete.

The **Global Growth Strategy** is a balanced approach to growth and income investing with a diversified portfolio of ETFs that invest in equity securities and fixed income securities. This balanced strategy invests between 50-75% in equity securities with flexible exposure across market capitalization spectrum and style. The fixed income portion provides diversification from equities. Diversification does not ensure a profit or protect against a loss. For information on risks associated with ETFs, see Exchange Traded Fund Risks below.

The Fixed Income Go Anywhere Strategy seeks to deliver 200+ bps a year of excess return to the Bloomberg Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index using a combination of overweights and underweights to ETFs invested in corporates, mortgages, emerging market debt, bank loans, convertibles, agencies, commercial mortgage backed securities, and treasuries, but with no tracking error target and greater focus on minimizing total return risk. Go Anywhere seeks to maintain positive returns, rather than positive excess returns versus the Aggregate Bond Index, and it seeks to do this by being more flexible with asset allocation than a traditional core fixed income strategy. For information on risks associated with ETFs and fixed income, see Fixed Income Security Risks and Exchange Traded Fund Risks below.

Risk of Loss

Clients should be aware of the following risks associated with the model portfolios offered by SAM:

Political Risk – US federal law imposes obligations on companies to disclose certain information on lobbying spend. If the law were to limit or eliminate such disclosures, that change could have a material, negative impact on the ability of SAM to gather information regarding corporate lobbying spend. In addition, federal law governing corporate taxes has been relatively stable for decades. The US federal government is evaluating possible reforms to corporate taxes. It is unclear at this time whether and to what extent the federal government will amend corporate tax law.

Geopolitical Risk - SAM model portfolios are exposed to complex geopolitical risks. Some geopolitical risks are normal, while others are in a heightened state. For instance, many of the companies in which SAM recommends have a presence in the European Union, including the United Kingdom. It is unclear at this time what impact the exit of certain countries from the European Union will have on the US economy and companies. In addition, the anti-globalization sentiment is growing in parts of the world, causing the renegotiation of trade and other deals between major superpowers, including the United States. It is unclear at this time what impact the renegotiation of certain trade deals will have on the US economy and companies.

Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates (in the United States and other markets around the globe) may reduce or increase the market value of a security.

Investment Risk – Investing in securities involves risk of loss that clients should be prepared to bear. SAM's past performance, or the past performance of its investment strategies, is not a guarantee of future results. Certain market and economic risks exist that may adversely affect an account's performance and result in a capital loss in that client account.

Model Risk – Any imperfections, limitations, or inaccuracies in models could affect the viability of the model portfolio. By necessity, model portfolios make simplifying assumptions that may limit the model's effectiveness. Models that appear to explain prior market data can fail to predict future market events. Further, the data used in models may be inaccurate and/or may not include the most current information available.

Equity Risk – The prices of equity securities rise and fall. These price movements may result from factors affecting individual companies, industries, or the securities market as a whole. Individual



companies may report poor results or be negatively affected by industry and/or economic trends and developments. The prices of securities issued by such companies may suffer a decline in response. In addition, the equity market tends to move in cycles, which may cause stock prices to fall over short or extended periods of time. Large cap equities tend to go in and out of favor based on market and economic conditions.

Industry Risk – Investments could be concentrated within one industry or group of industries. Any factors detrimental to the performance of such industries will disproportionately impact investment returns. Investments focused in a particular industry are subject to greater risk and are more impacted by market volatility than less concentrated investments.

Management Risk – SAM applies the client selected model portfolio in making investment decision for its client, but there can be no guarantee that such decisions will produce the desired results.

Fixed Income Security Risks. Fixed income securities are subject to certain risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In addition, they are subject to maturity risk. Generally, the longer a bond's maturity, the greater the interest rate risk and the higher its yield. Conversely, the shorter a bond's maturity, the lower the interest rate risk and the lower its yield. Non-rated, split-rated, below investment grade, and asset-backed securities, including mortgage-backed securities and CMOs, have additional, special risks.

Exchange Traded Fund Risks. An ETF is different from a mutual fund in that an ETF does not sell its shares directly to public investors and does not redeem shares from public investors. Rather, shares of an ETF are commonly purchased or sold in the secondary market on a securities exchange, like common stocks. An ETF maintains a net asset value but, based on demand and other factors, the market price of shares of an ETF may vary from its net asset value. ETFs invest in and hold securities and other assets, such as stocks, bonds, commodities and currencies, and have stated investment objectives and principal strategies. ETFs can have many different investment objectives and strategies, including equity, fixed income, balanced, international, and global strategies, and strategies that focus on a particular

market capitalization, investment style, economic industry or sector, or geographic region. Many ETFs seek to track the performance of an index or other underlying benchmark. Passively managed ETFs will not be able to replicate exactly the performance of the indices the ETFs track because the total return generated by the securities will be reduced by management fees, transaction costs and other expenses incurred by the ETF. ETFs have other risks, which may include market risk, management and securities selection risk, investment objective and asset allocation risk, stock market risk, equity securities risk, common stock risk, fixed income securities risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, capitalization risk, investment style risk, foreign issuer and investment risk, and emerging market risk. Certain ETFs pursue Complex Strategies, which are subject to special risks. The degree of these and other risks will vary depending on the type of ETF selected.

Proprietary Products Risk. SAM and SAM's affiliates earn higher fees, compensation and other benefits if a client invests in investment products that SAM or SAM's affiliates issue, sponsor, or manage, such as mutual funds, ETFs, UITs, closed-end funds and private equity funds, than if a client invested in unrelated products. Therefore, SAM has an incentive to recommend or to invest a client's assets in those affiliated products over products unrelated to SAM.

The foregoing list of risks does not purpose to be a complete enumeration or explanation of all the risks involved in SAM's investment strategies. No assurance can be made that profits will be achieved or that substantial losses will not be incurred.

Item 9. Disciplinary Information

SAM is required to disclose all material facts regarding any legal or disciplinary events that would be material to a client or a prospective client's evaluation of SAM or the integrity of its management. As of the date of this Brochure, SAM has no information applicable to this Item.

Item 10. Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations Material Relationships

SAM maintains the following relationships that are material to SAM's investment advisory business:



1. Strategas Securities, LLC: SAM has entered into an agreement with its affiliate, Strategas Securities, LLC (STS), a FINRA member brokerdealer and SEC registered investment adviser. STS produces the model portfolios and updates, which SAM is licensed to use, offer and provide to its clients. SAM does not produce its own model portfolios. STS provides the model portfolios to SAM as well as to its own brokerage clients. Without this relationship, SAM would not have these model portfolios to provide to its clients, nor be able to provide Portfolio Management Services pursuant to these model portfolios. STS is a sponsor of Strategas Trust, a unit investment trust organized in series, which series currently consists of Strategas Trust, Series 1-1 (Strategas Policy Basket Portfolio).

Each SAM supervised person (other than its Chief Compliance Officer) is also a registered representative of STS. SAM's Chief Compliance Officer is a senior compliance professional employed by Baird, an affiliate of SAM. As STS registered representatives, certain SAM supervised persons receive compensation based on a percentage of commissions generated by STS institutional brokerage clients who receive one of the model portfolios through STS. This presents a potential conflict of interest when an institutional brokerage client could potentially obtain access to a model portfolio either as a brokerage client of STS or an advisory client of SAM, as STS/SAM may have an incentive to recommend the relationship that would be most profitable rather than the relationship that is in the client's best interest. To address this, STS and SAM each have a policy to notify potential institutional clients of the availability of the model portfolio through both types of arrangements. SAM notes that this conflict does not arise with respect to noninstitutional accounts as STS limits its brokerage activities to institutions.

The relationship between STS and SAM also creates a potential conflict of interest with regard to the timing of the provision of the model portfolio to each of STS's clients, SAM's Model Delivery Services clients, and SAM's Portfolio Management Services clients (separately managed accounts and SEC registered investment companies). SAM has a fiduciary duty to act in the best interest of all its clients, including treating each client fairly. To ensure that all clients are treated fairly, SAM and STS have a policy governing the distribution of the model portfolios updates to their clients. Upon becoming a client of either SAM or STS, such client entitled to a model portfolio update is randomly placed on the SAM/STS list of clients, which then provides the order in which the model portfolio updates are delivered to clients. After a model portfolio update has been delivered to all clients, the list rotates, with the client at the top of the list going to the bottom of the list. When distributing model portfolio updates, SAM and STS send the updates after market close and before market open to minimize the possibility that one or more SAM or STS clients will be able to trade based on such updates before other clients are able to trade. SAM addresses these conflicts through disclosure in this Brochure.

Institutional clients of SAM may have the option of receiving the model portfolio through SAM's affiliate, STS. Further, similar model portfolio services may be offered by other investment advisers that may cost clients more or less than receiving the services from SAM.

SAM does not place orders for securities transactions with STS for the client accounts SAM manages. However, for the accounts it manages in which Baird has custody, SAM places orders for securities transactions with Baird as broker-dealer. See immediately below.

2. Affiliation with Baird: SAM is owned by Baird Financial Corporation and is under common control with Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated (Baird), a FINRA member broker-dealer and SEC-registered investment adviser. Baird provides support services to SAM on legal and compliance matters, and SAM's Chief Compliance Officer also serves as a senior compliance professional at Baird. SAM has a relationship with Baird in which it recommends to clients that they appoint Baird as custodian when those clients do not have a custodial relationship or preference. When Baird serves as custodian for client accounts that retain SAM for portfolio management services, Baird provides trading services in addition to custody and account maintenance services for a quarterly fee that generally is at an annual rate of 0.15% of the value of the client's account. Baird's Platform presents a conflict of interest for SAM. SAM has an incentive to recommend Baird's Platform because Baird does not charge SAM for use of the Platform and SAM, by virtue of its affiliation with Baird, indirectly benefits from the revenues that Baird receives for the services Baird provides to clients. SAM addresses this conflict through disclosure in this



Brochure.

3. **RiverFront Investment Group:** SAM provides model portfolios (Policy Opportunities Portfolio and Blue Chip Opportunities Portfolio) to RiverFront Investment Group, LLC. RiverFront and SAM are affiliated with each other, and are affiliated with Baird. RiverFront is approximately 49% owned by Baird Financial Corporation, and SAM and Baird are 100% owned by Baird Financial Corporation. RiverFront uses SAM's model portfolios to manage client accounts and it redelivers SAM's model portfolios. For providing the model portfolios to RiverFront, SAM receives a fee from RiverFront equal to 50% of the fee that RiverFront receives as a result of its use of SAM's model portfolios. As part of the model provider agreement between SAM and RiverFront, SAM, from time to time, will provide marketing support in the form of sharing expenses for conferences, meetings, and other events designed to educate clients and potential clients about the Policy **Opportunities Portfolio and Blue Chip Opportunities** Portfolio. Additionally, SAM is responsible for 50% of the fees charged to RiverFront by SEI Global Services, Inc., its affiliate, or a similar third party for performing account reconciliation of accounts managed pursuant to the Model Portfolios. These expenses will be netted out of the model portfolio fees that RiverFront pays SAM. SAM and STS associates will also make themselves available from time to time to assist in the marketing of the Policy Opportunities Portfolio and Blue Chip Opportunities Portfolio. RiverFront also purchases hard-dollar macro-economic research from STS at a discounted price.

4. The Platforms: SAM has entered into agreements with third-party, money management platforms (the Platforms) to utilize their respective platform services in providing Portfolio Management Services to clients. The Platforms provide or facilitate a full-suite of services including, but not limited to, order management, order entry, custodial relationships, brokerage, billing, invoicing, and performance analytics. As a result of receiving such services at a reduced cost (or at no additional cost) to SAM, SAM may have an incentive to continue to use or to expand the use of the Platforms, including their brokers and custodians. SAM has made reasonable efforts to confirm that the commissions and other fees charged by each are reasonable in relation to the value of the services received. To the extent that the fees received by SAM for managing accounts

using a model portfolio may vary from Platform to Platform, SAM may have an incentive to recommend that clients use a Platform that pays SAM a fee at a higher rate than a Platform that pays SAM a fee at a lower rate.

From time to time, SAM may receive a client referral from a Platform. SAM does not allow such referrals to affect the investment advice SAM provides clients. If a prospective client approaches SAM with a Platform already selected, SAM does not counsel the prospective client on other Platforms. If a prospective client specifically asks SAM for a recommendation on which Platform to select, SAM provides the prospective client with platforms available but does not recommend one over another. SAM's practice of not recommending alternate Platforms to certain clients may cause certain clients to pay commissions and other fees that are higher than another qualified platform might charge to maintain the account or effect the same transactions.

5. Affiliation with Mutual Funds: SAM currently serves as sub-adviser to the Brinker Capital Destinations Large Cap Equity Fund.

Compensation of some SAM Supervised Persons

Some of SAM's supervised persons receive compensation based on a client's total assets invested using a model portfolio, if the client was solicited by the supervised person. The compensation is a percentage of the fee received by SAM from the client. SAM's supervised persons negotiate with SAM to establish the percentage of fee the supervised person will receive. This compensation practice presents a potential conflict of interest because it gives SAM's supervised persons an incentive to recommend model portfolios based on the compensation they will receive rather than on a client's need. The portfolio manager or his designee periodically monitors client accounts to confirm the model portfolio recommendations are in the best interest of each client.

Item 11. Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client Transactions and Personal Trading

SAM has adopted a Code of Ethics to ensure that securities transactions by our employees are consistent with SAM's fiduciary duty to its clients



and to ensure compliance with legal requirements and our standards of business conduct.

SAM does not buy or sell securities for its own account. However, SAM manages client accounts that are owned by persons associated with SAM. Such client accounts are treated in the same manner as all other SAM client accounts.

SAM's employees and supervised persons are permitted to buy or sell for their personal accounts the same securities held in client accounts. However, SAM's employees and supervised persons are not permitted to personally benefit from the short-term market effects of SAM's investment recommendations, and may not trade ahead of SAM clients or trade in such a way to obtain a better price for themselves than SAM's clients. SAM's employees and supervised persons are prohibited from entering into any securities transactions, without approval from SAM's Chief Compliance Officer or her designee, during a three day blackout period following the model portfolio release to clients and those updates have been implemented by SAM in client accounts it manages. Addition, no SAM supervised person may enter into a securities transaction regarding a particular security if the person knows or has reason to believe that security will be traded for a client account managed by SAM. The CCO or her designee may authorize such personal securities transactions if he or she determines the transaction does not conflict with a fiduciary duty owed to a SAM client. SAM's employees and supervised persons are also prohibited for using/misusing material non-public information or engaging in insider trading.

SAM's employees and supervised persons are permitted to buy or sell for their personal accounts the shares of mutual funds for which SAM serves as an advisor or sub-adviser. SAM, in providing Portfolio Management Services, does not recommend to clients the shares of mutual funds for which it serves as an adviser or sub-adviser.

SAM's employees and supervised persons must comply with SAM's Compliance Procedures Manual and Code of Ethics, which impose these personal trading and other restrictions. On a quarterly and annual basis, SAM's employees and supervised persons must report their personal securities trading activity and securities holdings, with limited exceptions, to SAM. The CCO or her designee reviews the quarterly and annual reports for any improper trading activity.

Any individual who fails to comply with the Compliance Procedures Manual or Code of Ethics may be subject to discipline. A copy of SAM's Code of Ethics is available upon request from Kathleen Daley, Chief Compliance Officer, at 414-298-7829 or by email at <u>info@strategasrp.com</u>

Brokerage Practices

Selection of Broker-Dealers

Portfolio Management Clients-Separately Managed Accounts

SAM does not trade portfolio securities for Model Portfolio Delivery clients. It only trades portfolio securities for Portfolio Management Services clients. However, as a result of how SAM structures its business, SAM generally does not select or recommend broker-dealers for client transactions. Rather, the Platform selected by the client generally selects and recommends the brokerdealer for the client's trades. These Platforms may have affiliated broker-dealers that offer commission rates that are lower or may offer wrap fee services for clients in which the fee paid by the client covers securities transactions and no separate commissions are charged. Although the Platforms may give the right to select other brokerdealers to execute trades if determined by SAM that it is in the client's best interest to do so consistent with SAM's best execution obligation, it is unlikely that SAM will place orders with brokerdealers that do not have custody of client accounts on a Platform because the Platform's brokerdealers are capable of efficiently executing trades in the types of liquid publicly trades US equities and ETFs in which SAM primarily invests for client accounts and they do so either at attractive commission rates or, in the case of wrap fee relationships, without commissions.

If SAM has the discretion to select the brokerdealer to execute portfolio trades for Portfolio Management Services clients, SAM seeks to obtain quality execution for security transactions through brokers and dealers. The primary consideration in the execution of all portfolio transactions is prompt execution of orders in an efficient manner at as favorable a price as possible under the circumstances. In selecting broker-dealers and negotiating commissions, SAM considers a variety of factors including, among others, the price of the security, the quality of execution and liquidity



services provided by the broker-dealer, the brokerdealer's ability to obtain a timely execution, the size and difficulty of the order, the reliability, efficiency, accuracy and integrity of the brokerdealer's general execution and operational capabilities, and the broker-dealer's financial condition. Under no circumstances does SAM consider, in selecting brokers or dealers to execute transactions for SEC registered investment companies, a broker's or dealer's promotion or sale of shares issued by the fund client. SAM does not enter into any agreement (oral or written) or other understanding under which SAM directs portfolio transactions, or any remuneration to a broker/dealer, in consideration for the promotion or sale of shares issued by a fund client.

In seeking best execution, the determinative factor is not the lowest possible cost, but whether the transaction represents the best qualitative execution, taking into consideration the full range of a broker-dealer's services, including the execution capability, commission rates and the benefit to the client.

Although SAM is affiliated with two broker-dealers, STS and Baird, SAM will not select either such broker-dealer to execute portfolio securities trades for client accounts managed by SAM due to the potential conflict of interest, without the prior consent of the client after appropriate disclosures are made to the client.

Research and Other Soft Dollar Benefits

SAM generally does not receive research products or services from, or enter into arrangements with broker-dealers for the receipt of research products services, which are paid for using client commissions. These are known as "soft dollar benefits." The model portfolios that SAM delivers to clients or uses to manage client accounts are generated by STS and thus SAM generally does not need any research services from broker-dealers or other third parties. However, it has the right to do so. To the extent it chooses to receive research or other products or services, in addition to execution services, from a broker-dealer in connection with client securities transactions without any separate payment from SAM out of its own resources for such services, SAM will rely on Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Section 28(e) allows asset managers such as SAM to cause clients to pay higher commissions to a brokerdealer that provides research and other services in

addition to execution than the commissions charged by broker-dealers that provide executiononly services, so long as SAM determines in good faith that the amount of commission to that brokerdealer was reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and research services provided by that broker-dealer. These services may include investment-related research on individual companies, sectors, industries and other market segments, pricing information and market data, investment professional and portfolio management publications, economic, policy, industry and other technical journals, attendance at conferences, meetings, and/or educational or social events, computer software or other products and services useful to SAM in providing investment advisory services to clients. These research and other products and services would be used to service all of SAM accounts, not just the client accounts managed by SAM whose commissions are used to pay for the services.

The receipt of such services may give SAM an incentive to consider such services in connection with recommending or continuing relationships with the entities that provide such services. SAM ensures that it has determined in good faith that the commissions and other fees charged by each are reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and other services contracted for and received.

In addition to the soft dollar arrangements described above, as discussed in Item 4, SAM provides advisory services through certain platforms that provide brokerage and custodial services. The Platforms allow SAM to access, on behalf of its client accounts, institutional trading desks typically not available to retail investors. Other benefits SAM may receive through its participation in the Platforms include the following products and services (provided without cost or at a discount): research related products and tools, consulting services, access to block trading, the ability to have advisory fees deducted directly from client accounts, and discounts on compliance, marketing, research, technology and practice management products or services. The benefits that SAM receives do not depend on the number of SAM clients who execute their trades through, or custody their accounts at, such platforms. The Platforms generally do not disclose the cost of these benefits to SAM. Although the commissions charged to SAM clients with respect to such platforms may be higher than the lowest



commissions available, SAM has determined that these commissions are reasonable in view of the execution capabilities of the Platforms, the level of services provided to SAM clients, and the ancillary services provided to the Firm.

Brokerage for Client Referrals

SAM does not consider, in selecting or recommending broker-dealers, whether SAM or a related person of SAM receives client referrals from a broker-dealer or a third party.

As discussed above and in Item 4, SAM has relationships with certain Platforms through whom SAM provides advisory services to the Platform's clients and from whom SAM receives some research and other benefits. SAM receives client referrals from these Platforms. Accordingly, SAM may have an incentive to recommend these Platforms, and the brokerage services of these Platforms, based on its interest in receiving these services and referrals rather than the clients' interest in receiving most favorable execution.

Directed Brokerage

SAM typically does not select the broker-dealer that executes the trades on behalf of SAM clients whose accounts are on a Platform. Rather, the Platform typically selects the broker-dealer. One of the Platforms is Baird. SAM will often recommend that clients who seek portfolio management services from SAM and who do not have a relationship with or preference for a particular custodian use Baird as their custodian. Baird is also a broker-dealer with trading capabilities. When clients use Baird as custodian for the accounts that SAM manages, they direct SAM to place orders for securities transactions with Baird and Baird executes those orders. These arrangements with Platforms including Baird are regarded as forms of directed brokerage.

In addition, SAM clients may be permitted to direct brokerage under the terms of their agreement between them and the Platform or otherwise by so informing SAM. Where the client directs brokerage, SAM may be unable to achieve the most favorable execution for the client's trades. Where the client directs brokerage, the client may be foregoing any benefit from savings on execution costs that SAM or the Platform could obtain as a result of negotiating the commission or aggregating (as discussed below) transactions with other clients. Such clients may pay higher commissions than clients who have not directed SAM or the Platform to execute transactions through a specific broker or dealer. Such clients may also not receive the most favorable available price with respect to certain transactions effected for the client's account. Clients directing brokerage to a particular broker-dealer have the responsibility of determining whether the commissions, executions, clearance and settlement capabilities, and fees for custodial or other services provided to the client by that broker-dealer are appropriate.

Aggregated Trades

SAM may aggregate securities transactions for multiple accounts using the same model portfolio when it is feasible to do so. For instance, when multiple client accounts in the same model portfolio are on the same Platform and model updates are being implemented across those accounts, the trades for those accounts are generally aggregated. An aggregation of client orders is also known as a block or bunched trade. Each client that participates in a block trade on a Platform (and if applicable, a block trade for clients who are not on a Platform) must do so at the average price for all transactions that are part of the block trade.

Transactions for a client that has directed the use of a particular broker or dealer or transactions over which SAM does not have discretionary authority may not be combined in a bunched or block order and may be placed at the end of bunched trading activity for a particular security. This may result in the client receiving a price that is less favorable than the price obtained for the bunched orders, and may also result in higher commissions, greater spreads or less favorable net prices.

SAM follows a trade rotation policy pursuant to which the Platforms (and, if applicable, a block trade for clients who are not on a Platform) are placed on a randomly generated list, which then provides the order in which the block trades are executed. After a block trade has been executed, the list rotates, with the Platform at the top of the list going to the bottom of the list.

Item 13. Review of Accounts

Account Reviews

SAM periodically reviews client accounts to ensure SAM is delivering its services in accordance with the terms of the applicable agreements.



For Model Delivery Services clients, SAM's CCO or her designee reviews the services at least quarterly to confirm the client has received the correct model portfolio information. These quarterly reviews typically coincide with the quarterly distributions of model portfolio updates.

For Portfolio Management Services clients, the portfolio manager or his designee reviews the client's account at least quarterly to confirm the client has received the correct model portfolio information and (where applicable) the portfolio has been rebalanced in accordance with the model portfolio update. The portfolio manager or his designee also checks accounts for compliance with client-imposed restrictions. These quarterly reviews typically coincide with the quarterly distributions of model portfolio updates.

Account Reporting

For Model Delivery Services clients, SAM typically does not provide written or oral reports to its model delivery clients regarding their accounts other than the invoices for fees. Clients may request information regarding the model portfolio updates from SAM at any time.

For Portfolio Management Services clients (separately managed accounts), SAM and/or the Platform provide reporting to clients consistent with the agreements entered into between the client, SAM, and the Platform. At a minimum, the clients receive a quarterly written statement that includes, among other things, the securities, quantity, and end of quarter value, and an annual statement of realized gains/losses. Clients may request information regarding their accounts from SAM at any time. As appropriate or needed, SAM works with the Platform to respond to such requests.

Item 14. Client Referrals and Other Compensation

SAM and its employees or supervised persons do not receive any additional economic benefit (including for example, sales awards or other prizes) from any non-client for providing investment advice or other advisory services to SAM clients.

SAM does not enter into any agreements (oral or written) or other understanding under which SAM pays, either directly or indirectly, any compensation to third parties for client referrals. SAM personnel, as well as STS personnel, may receive referral compensation, however. As explained above, SAM participates in institutional programs that provide a platform, including access to brokers and custodians, to SAM's clients. From time to time, SAM may receive a client referral from one of the Platforms. SAM does not allow such referrals to affect the investment advice SAM provides clients.

Item 15. Custody

SAM is affiliated with Baird by virtue of common ownership and Baird is a qualified custodian. SAM is deemed to have custody of client assets when Baird maintains custody of client accounts. SAM clients, regardless of their advisory relationship, are under no obligation to use Baird as custodian of their assets. Clients are responsible for selecting the qualified custodian where their assets will be maintained. SAM recommends that clients use Baird as custodian for their accounts when those clients do not have other custodial relationships or preferences.

All clients for whom SAM is deemed to have custody receive quarterly account statements directly from the qualified custodian. SAM urges clients to carefully review the statements received from qualified custodians.

Item 16. Investment Discretion

SAM exercises discretionary authority when providing Portfolio Management Services to clients. Before SAM can assume discretionary authority to manage client assets, the client must enter into a written agreement that gives SAM, either directly or through a primary investment adviser, the power to make purchase and sale decisions for the client account. The written agreement may be an advisory agreement between SAM and the client, or a sub-advisory agreement between SAM and the client's adviser, including (but not limited to) the relevant Platform. In some instances, SAM's discretionary authority in making these decisions may be limited by reasonable restrictions or modest investment changes regarding the securities selected for a model portfolio imposed by the client.

Where investment discretion has been granted, SAM manages the client's portfolio and makes investment decision without specific direction from the client subject to the client's selected model portfolio. Such decisions include determinations



regarding which securities are bought and sold for the account, and the total amount of the securities to be bought and sold.

See "Item 12 Brokerage Practices" regarding SAM's practices on brokerage discretion.

Item 17. Voting Client Securities

For certain clients, SAM, as directed by the client in writing, is responsible for voting proxies related to securities held in the client's account. This is typically the case when SAM manages the client's account with discretion. In voting proxies, SAM relies on advice and the electronic voting management system offered by a third-party proxy advisory firm, which is currently Institutional Shareholder Services ("ISS"). Using a proxy advisory firm is in the client's best interest because, unlike SAM, such firms have staff dedicated to assessing business, political, and financial risks related to corporate governance on a worldwide basis. For each proxy advisory firm that SAM has engaged, SAM reviews at least annually the firm's guidelines and capabilities in analyzing proxy issues and providing voting recommendations. SAM also periodically reviews the conflict procedures of the proxy advisory firms to determine their effectiveness.

For these clients, SAM typically votes proxies in accordance with the proxy advisory firm's benchmark guidelines for proxy voting. From time to time, ISS may not have a recommendation or may defer to SAM with respect to a particular matter to be voted upon. In such cases, SAM generally votes a proxy as the board of directors of a company recommends, unless SAM believes the recommended vote is not in the best interest of SAM's clients.

Conflicts can arise when SAM, its affiliates, or a SAM employee has a financial, business or personal relationship with the issuer (or its affiliates, plans or management) of a proxy proposal for a security held in a client's account. To avoid potential conflicts of interest, SAM generally votes proxies in accordance with the proxy advisory firm's benchmark guidelines. In limited situations, SAM may vote for a particular issue contrary to the recommendation of the proxy advisory firm if SAM believes a vote contrary to the proxy advisory firm's recommendation is in the best interest of SAM's clients. In these instances or when ISS may not have a recommendation, SAM has a proxy voting committee that considers the portfolio manager's recommendation and rationale and any potential conflicts of interest and then determines how the proxy should be voted. SAM's CCO or her designee reviews all votes before they are cast to ensure they are in the best interest of SAM's clients.

If a client would like to know how SAM voted any proxy in their account, they may contact the person at SAM who handles their account. If they would like a complete copy of SAM's written proxy voting procedures and the relevant proxy advisory firm's benchmark guidelines, which detail the policies and procedures for casting proxy votes, they may contact SAM's CCO.

For Model Delivery Services clients and other clients who have not given SAM discretion to vote proxies, SAM is not responsible for voting proxies related to securities held in the client's account. Clients should review the terms of their account paperwork to determine if and how they will receive their proxies or other solicitations. It may be that the clients agreed to receive their proxies or other solicitations directly from their custodian or for the custodian to direct the proxies or other solicitations directly to a proxy advisory firm, without copy to the client. Clients may contact SAM with questions regarding proxy voting, including questions about a particular solicitation.

Class Action, Bankruptcies and other legal proceedings. SAM neither advises nor acts on behalf of the client in legal proceedings involving companies whose securities are held in the client's account, including, but not limited to, responses to bankruptcies, the filing of claims or any other response to class action cases or class action settlements. To the extent that SAM receives any documentation directed to holders of the identified security, SAM forwards such documents to the relevant clients.

Item 18. Financial Information

SAM does not have any financial conditions that are reasonably likely to impair its ability to meet its contractual commitments to clients.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Courtney L. Rosenberger

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 1775 I Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20006 1-202-243-7584

This brochure supplement provides information about Courtney L. Rosenberger that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Courtney L. Rosenberger is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Courtney L. Rosenberger (Born in 1992)

- B.B.A., Finance, B.B.S. Economics, University of Kentucky, 2014
- Portfolio Analyst, Strategas Asset Management, since June 2018
- Vice President and Director, Strategas Securities, LLC, since May 2014
- Undergraduate Research Assistant, University of Kentucky, September 2013-May 2014
- Intern, C.H. Robinson, May 2013-August 2013

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to her role at SAM, Ms. Rosenberger is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Ms. Rosenberger provides policy commentaries and research to institutional and other clients of STS. Ms. Rosenberger's primary occupation is with STS and most of her total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Ms. Rosenberger does not receive a salary for providing investment advisory services for SAM. However, she may receive a discretionary bonus. Ms. Rosenberger does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although she may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Ms. Rosenberger's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with her employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Ms. Rosenberger's advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the model portfolios and investment strategies she assists in developing that are used by SAM in its management of accounts, the trades made for those accounts, the performance of the models and accounts, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Ms. Rosenberger. Daniel M. Clifton, Portfolio Manager of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Ms. Rosenberger's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Clifton's telephone number is 202-223-7644.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Daniel M. Clifton Strategas Asset Management, LLC 1775 I Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20006 1-202-223-7644

This brochure supplement provides information about Daniel M. Clifton that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Daniel M. Clifton is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Daniel M. Clifton (Born in 1975)

- B.A., Urban Planning, Rutgers University, 2000
- M.S., Public Policy, Rutgers University, 2000
- Portfolio Manager, Strategas Asset Management, since April 2014
- Partner and Head of Policy Research, Strategas Securities, LLC, since September 2008

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to his role at SAM, Mr. Clifton is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Mr. Clifton provides policy commentaries and research to institutional and other clients of STS. Mr. Clifton's primary occupation is with STS and most of his total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Mr. Clifton does not receive a salary for providing investment advisory services for SAM. However, he may receive a discretionary bonus. Mr. Clifton does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although he may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Mr. Clifton's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with his employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. Clifton's. advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the model portfolios and investment strategies he uses in managing accounts for SAM, the trades made for those accounts, the performance of the models and accounts, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. Clifton. Nicholas G. Bohnsack, President of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. Clifton's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's telephone number is 212-906-0130.



Brochure Supplement

March 2, 2021

Gerald F. Hendricks, CFA*

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor New York, NY 10017 1-212-906-0130

This brochure supplement provides information about Gerald F. Hendricks that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Gerald F. Hendricks is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Gerald F. Hendricks (Born in 1971)

- B.S., Accounting, Villanova University, 1994
- M.B.A., Finance, Fordham University, 2020
- Director, Senior Portfolio Analyst, Strategas Asset Management, since January 2021
- Financial Advisor, Merrill Lynch Wealth Management – White Plains, NY, 2019 – 2021
- Macro and Technical Strategist, Akera Capital, LLC. - Stamford, CT, 2018
- Senior Analyst, Portfolio & Technical Analytics, Columbus Circle Investors -Stamford, CT, 2007 – 2017

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

Not applicable

Additional Compensation

Not applicable

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. Hendricks' advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the holdings and performance of accounts of clients that he manages, trading in those accounts, the performance of those accounts, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. Hendricks. Nicholas Bohnsack, President of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. Hendricks' advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's telephone number is 212-906-0130.

* Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA). A CFA charter is a professional designation established in 1962 and awarded by CFA Institute. To earn the CFA charter, candidates must: 1) pass three sequential, six-hour examinations described below; 2) have at least four years of qualified professional investment experience; 3) join CFA Institute as members; and 4) commit to abide by, and annually reaffirm, their adherence to the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct. The CFA Program is organized into three levels, each culminating in a six-hour exam. The three levels of the CFA Program test a proficiency with a wide range of fundamental and advanced investment topics, including ethical and professional standards, fixedincome and equity analysis, alternative and derivative investments, economics, financial reporting standards, portfolio management, and wealth planning. There is no limit to the number of times a candidate can take each exam, and a candidate can take as long as needed to complete the program.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Jason DeSena Trennert

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor New York, NY 10017 1-212-906-0130

This brochure supplement provides information about Jason DeSena Trennert that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Jason DeSena Trennert is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Jason DeSena Trennert (Born in 1968)

- B.A., International Economics, Georgetown University, 1990
- MBA., University of Pennsylvania (Wharton School), 1996
- Chief Investment Officer, Strategas Asset Management, since April 2014
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Strategas Securities, LLC, since September 2006

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to his role at SAM, Mr. Trennert is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Mr. Trennert is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of STS. Mr. Trennert's primary occupation is with STS and most of his total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Mr. Trennert receives a discretionary bonus for providing investment advisory services for SAM. He does not receive a salary. Mr. Trennert does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although he may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Mr. Trennert's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with his employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. Trennert's advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the holdings and performance of accounts of clients that he manages, trading in those accounts, the performance of those accounts, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. Trennert. Nicholas G. Bohnsack, President of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. Trennert's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's telephone number is 212-906-0130.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Joseph L. Jackson

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor New York, NY 10017 1-212-906-0130

This brochure supplement provides information about Joseph L. Jackson that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Joseph L. Jackson is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Joseph L. Jackson (Born in 1958)

- B.A., Japanese and Russian Languages, Georgetown University, 1980
- MBA, Columbia University, 1983
- Representative, Strategas Asset Management, since June 2018
- Managing Director and Head of Institutional Sales – Asia-Pacific, Strategas Securities, LLC, since February 2017
- Executive Director, Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc., May 2015-March 2016
- Executive Director, Morgan Stanley & Co. Inc., January 2005-November 2014

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to his role at SAM, Mr. Jackson is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Mr. Jackson is Head of Institutional Sales – Asia-Pacific at STS, selling its research and trading services and servicing its institutional clients in Asia. Mr. Jackson's primary occupation is with STS and most of his total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Mr. Jackson does not receive a salary or bonus for providing investment advisory services for SAM. Mr. Jackson does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although he may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Mr. Jackson's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with his employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. Jackson's advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the holdings and performance of accounts of clients that he referred to SAM, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. Jackson. Nicholas G. Bohnsack, President of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. Jackson's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's telephone number is 212-906-0130.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Kris J. Garland

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor New York, NY 10017 1-212-906-0130

This brochure supplement provides information about Kris J. Garland that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Kris J. Garland is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Kris J. Garland (Born in 1979)

- B.A., Economics, University of Colorado, 2001
- MBA, Fordham University, 2009
- Representative, Strategas Asset Management, since June 2018
- Managing Director-Institutional Sales, Strategas Securities, LLC, since January 2011
- Vice President-Institutional Equities, Morgan Stanley & Co. Inc., April 2002-April 2010

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to his role at SAM, Mr. Garland is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Mr. Garland is an institutional salesman at STS, selling its research and trading services and servicing its institutional clients. Mr. Garland's primary occupation is with STS and most of his total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Mr. Garland does not receive a salary or bonus for providing investment advisory services for SAM. Mr. Garland does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although he may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Mr. Garland's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with his employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. Garland's advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the holdings and performance of accounts of clients that he referred to SAM, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. Garland. Nicholas G. Bohnsack, President of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. Garland's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's telephone number is 212-906-0130.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Michael P. Brangan

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor New York, NY 10017 1-212-906-0130

This brochure supplement provides information about Michael P. Brangan that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Michael P. Brangan is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Michael P. Brangan (Born in 1981)

- B.S/B.A., Finance, University of Central Florida, 2005
- Representative, Strategas Asset Management, since June 2018
- Director-Institutional Sales, Strategas Securities, LLC, since April 2011

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to his role at SAM, Mr. Brangan is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Mr. Brangan is an institutional salesman at STS, selling its research and trading services and servicing its institutional clients. Mr. Brangans primary occupation is with STS and most of his total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Mr. Brangan does not receive a salary or bonus for providing investment advisory services for SAM. Mr. Brangan does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although he may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Mr. Brangan's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with his employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. Brangan's advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the holdings and performance of accounts of clients that he referred to SAM, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. Brangan. Nicholas G. Bohnsack, President of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. Brangan's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's telephone number is 212-906-0130.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Nicholas G. Bohnsack

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor New York, NY 10017 1-212-906-0130

This brochure supplement provides information about Nicholas G. Bohnsack that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Nicholas G. Bohnsack is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Nicholas G. Bohnsack (Born in 1979)

- B.A., Economics and Finance, Bryant University, 2000
- M.A., Mathematics, Fairfield University, 2008
- President/CEO and Portfolio Manager, Strategas Asset Management, since April 2014
- President and COO, Strategas Securities, LLC, since September 2006

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to his role at SAM, Mr. Bohnsack is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Mr. Bohnsack is President and Chief Operating Officer of STS. Mr. Bohnsack's primary occupation is with STS and most of his total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Mr. Bohnsack receives a discretionary bonus for providing investment advisory services for SAM. He does not receive a salary. Mr. Bohnsack does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although he may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with his employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. Bohnsack's advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the holdings and performance of accounts of clients that he manages, trading in those accounts, the performance of those accounts, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. Bohnsack. Jason DeSena Trennert, Chief Investment Officer of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. Bohnsack's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Trennert's telephone number is 212-906-0130.



Brochure Supplement

July 10, 2018

Robert M. LaPolla

Strategas Asset Management, LLC 52 Vanderbilt Avenue, Eighth Floor New York, NY 10017 1-212-906-0130

This brochure supplement provides information about Robert M. LaPolla that supplements the brochure of Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("SAM"). You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact SAM at the number listed above if you did not receive SAM's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement. Additional information about Robert M. LaPolla is available on the SEC's website at adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Robert M. LaPolla (Born in 1986)

- B.A., Economics and History, College of the Holy Cross, 2008
- Representative, Strategas Asset Management, since June 2018
- Managing Director, Strategas Securities, LLC, since December 2012
- Equity Research Sales Associate, Brown Brothers Harriman, July 2008-September 2012

Disciplinary Information

Not applicable.

Other Business Activities

In addition to his role at SAM, Mr. LaPolla is also associated with Strategas Securities, LLC ("STS"), a broker-dealer and FINRA member firm. Mr. LaPolla is an institutional salesman at STS, selling its research and trading services and servicing its institutional clients. Mr. LaPolla's primary occupation is with STS and most of his total compensation is paid by STS. Through its research group, STS provides model portfolios that are licensed to and used by SAM in the conduct of its investment advisory business. SAM does not place any orders for the purchase or sale of any securities for its client accounts with SAM. Some of SAM's clients may be referred to by STS or have relationships with STS.

Additional Compensation

Mr. LaPolla does not receive a salary or bonus for providing investment advisory services for SAM. Mr. LaPolla does not receive any additional compensation or economic benefits (such as sales awards, prizes or other incentives, or payments from third parties) for providing advisory services, although he may receive payments for referring clients to SAM. Mr. LaPolla's primary form of compensation is a salary and bonus in connection with his employment with STS.

Supervision

SAM generally supervises Mr. LaPolla's advisory services to clients by periodically reviewing the holdings and performance of accounts of clients that he referred to SAM, and any client correspondence and sales literature prepared and used by Mr. LaPolla. Nicholas G. Bohnsack, President of SAM, is primarily responsible for supervising Mr. LaPolla's advisory activities on behalf of SAM. Mr. Bohnsack's telephone number is 212-906-0130.

WHAT DOES STRATEGAS DO WITH YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION? **FACTS** Whv? Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully to understand what we do. What? When we refer to "personal data" we mean any data relating to an identified or identifiable individual. This could include information that could identify an individual, directly or indirectly, in particular, by reference to an identifier such as a name, ID number, location data or online identifier. It also includes factors specific to an individual's characteristics. Strategas collects limited personal data on its clients; and this primarily encompasses the following types of information: Contact and organization related material such as an individual's work email and business role • Business communications, such as email exchanges or in-person meetings • Access to the firm's research How? All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can share their customers' personal information; the reasons Strategas Securities, LLC ("Strategas") choose to share; and whether you can limit this sharing. **Does Strategas share?** Reasons we can share your personal information Can you limit this sharing? For our everyday business purposes-Yes No such as to process your transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders and legal investigations, or report to credit bureaus For our marketing purposes— Yes No to offer our products and services to you For joint marketing with other financial companies No No For our affiliates' everyday business purposes-Yes No information about experiences N/A For our affiliates' everyday business purposes-No information about your creditworthiness N/A For our affiliates to market to you No For nonaffiliates to market to you No N/A

Questions?

Call (toll free) 1-800-792-2473 or go to www.strategasrp.com

Who we are		
Who is providing this notice?	Strategas Securities, LLC, Strategas Asset Management, LLC ("Strategas")	
What we do		
How does Strategas protect my personal information?	To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use security measures that comply with federal law. These measures include computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.	
How does Strategas collect my personal information?	 We collect your personal data during the course of your dealings with us. For example, when you engage with us in respect of a project we are undertaking for your organization. Otherwise, we gather information about you when you provide it to us, for example when you correspond with your contacts within Strategas. We may also receive information about you from other sources, such as directly from your organization or via online resources including LinkedIn and other publicly available sources. We combine information about you from various sources, including the information that you have provided to us directly. 	
Why can't I limit all sharing?	 Federal law gives you the right to limit only: sharing for affiliates' everyday business purposes—information about your creditworthiness affiliates from using your information to market to you sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing. 	
Definitions		
Affiliates	 Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies. Strategas Securities, LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated. Our affiliates are Baird Financial Group, Inc., Baird Holding Company, Baird Financial Corporation, Robert W. Baird Group Limited, Robert W. Baird GmbH, and Baird Funds, Inc. Service providers that provide services on our behalf, including IT service providers Legal and other professional advisors and auditors Regulators and law enforcement agencies Where third parties are given access to your personal data, Strategas will take the required contractual, technical and organizational measures to ensure that your personal data is only processed to the extent necessary 	
Nonaffiliates	 Companies not related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies. Strategas does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you. 	
Joint marketing	 A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together market financial products or services to you. We do not have any joint marketing partners. Strategas does not have any joint marketing partners. 	

Other important information

For Nevada residents only. We are providing you this notice pursuant to state law. You may be placed on our internal Do Not Call List by following the directions in the "Can you limit this sharing" section by choosing to limit sharing "For our affiliates to market to you." Nevada law requires that we also provide you with the following contact information: Bureau of Consumer Protection, Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington Street, Suite 3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101; Phone number: (702) 486-3132; e-mail: BCPINFOag.state.nv.us. Strategas Securities, LLC, 52 Vanderbilt Ave, New York, NY 10017; Phone Number 212-906-0131; e-mail Click on "Contact Us" in the top right corner at www.strategasrp.com

Vermont: In accordance with Vermont law, we will not share information we collect about Vermont residents with companies outside of our corporate family, except as permitted by law, such as with your consent, to service your accounts or to other financial institutions with which we have joint marketing agreements. We will not share information about your creditworthiness within our corporate family except with your authorization or consent, but we may share information about our transactions or experiences with you within our corporate family without your consent.

California: In accordance with California law, we will not share information we collect about you with companies outside of Strategas, unless the law allows. For example, we may share information, to service your accounts, or to provide rewards or benefits you are entitled to. We will limit sharing among our companies to the extent required by California law. We collect personally identifiable information from online customers when those customers choose to enter their personal information while using Strategas's web sites and/or online services (including mobile applications). This information includes, but is not limited to, customer names, e-mail and mailing addresses, phone numbers, and social security numbers. Strategas does not collect personally identifiable information from general online site visitors unless those consumers unilaterally opt to provide personally identifiable information to Strategas. Strategas also does not share personally identifiable information previously supplied to Strategas, those customers may do so by contacting their local Strategas entity branch office and requesting the change. Alternatively, some web sites and online services offiered by Strategas permit customers to change the contents of their personally identifiable information about individual consumers unless those consumers choose to provide such information. We are aware that some internet browsers have incorporated Do Not Track ("DNT") features. Most of these features, when turned on, send a signal or preference to the web sites you visit indicating that you do not wish to be tracked. Because Strategas does not currently respond to DNT signals, whether on its web sites or other online services. Strategas canot, however, guarantee protection from web sites or other online services. Strategas canot, however, guarantee protection from web sites or other online services.

Third country transfers:

Strategas may transfer personal data outside of the EEA, where data protection laws may not offer the same level of protection available in your home country. Personal data may be transferred to third countries outside of the EEA (almost exclusively to the US) due to the data hosting locations of Strategas IT infrastructure. Where we use third parties to provide data hosting solutions, these transfers comply with relevant equivalent programs, such as the EU-US Privacy Shield (frameworks developed to enable organizations to comply with data protection requirements when transferring personal data from the European Union to third countries). When we transfer your personal data to any Strategas affiliates based outside the EEA or any country considered "adequate" by the European Commission, we rely on an intra-group transfer agreement that incorporates EU Standard Contractual Clauses designed to protect your personal data. You may obtain information and a copy of the relevant mechanism relied on for the transfer of your personal data by contacting us via the details set out in the "Contact us" section below. You may also find a copy of the EU Standard Contractual Clauses and related information at the Europa website (https://ec.europa.eu/info/law/law-topic/data-protection/data-transfers-outside-eu/model-contracts-transfer-personal-data-third-countries_en)

Retention period:

Strategas will only hold your personal data for as long as required to undertake the purposes of our processing, plus a prescribed period of time as required by national laws in your jurisdiction.

We hold personal data about our clients for the following periods:

• Data relating to prospective clients will be retained for up to five years, after which the record may be deleted if there is no recorded contact between Strategas and the prospective client or the prospective client has asked to be deleted within this period;

• Data relating to clients will be retained for the duration of the client relationship plus a further period to comply with certain obligations, legal requirements and best practices.

We will also retain your personal data for as long as necessary in connection with legal action or any investigations involving Strategas.

Individual data rights:

Individuals may have certain statutory rights in relation to their personal data. Subject to any exemptions provided by law, if your personal data is processed by Strategas in respect of our client relationship activities, you may have the following rights:

• to receive confirmation from Strategas as to whether we process your personal data, and where we do, access to that personal data and certain other information;

- to request the rectification of any inaccurate personal data that we hold about you;
- · to request the erasure of your personal data in certain circumstances;
- to request the restriction of our processing of your personal data in certain other circumstances, for example in certain scenarios where we are unable to comply with a request to erase your personal data;
- to receive a copy of the personal data that you have provided to Strategas in a structured, machine-readable and commonly-used format and/or, where possible, to
 request we transmit that personal data to another organization;
- to object to certain processing of your personal data and to automated decision making and where our processing is based on your consent, you have the right to withdraw consent at any time by contacting us.

Where you are given the option to share your personal data with us, you can always choose not to do so. If you object to the processing of your personal data, we will respect that choice in accordance with its legal obligations. This could mean that we are unable to perform the actions necessary to achieve the purposes of processing described in the Purposes of Processing section above

For MA Insurance Customers only. You may ask in writing the specific reasons for an adverse underwriting decision. An adverse underwriting decision is where we decline your application for insurance, offer to insure you at a higher than standard rate, or terminate your coverage.

Strategas may change this privacy notice at any time, and any changes or updates will be effective immediately on the date of posting. For a current version, please visit www.strategasrp.com/Disclosures